


Table of Contents

June 8§, 2022
Agenda Item #IIL...ccovriiiniiiiniiiiiiiiriiiniieinsirersieisansesatssnnssssnsonrass sosanne Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV .....coovviiiiiiininee. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of May 18, 2022
Agenda Item #V........coovivnnnnnn. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of May 18, 2022

Agenda Item #VIIL....ccocviiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



Board of Public Utilities
Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
June &, 2022 — 6:00 P.M.

[. Call to Order

1. Roll Call

David Haley, At Large, Position 2
_____Tom Groneman, District 2

____Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

Jeft Bryant, District 3

_____ Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
____Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3

1. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of May 18, 2022

V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of May 18, 2022
VI. Public Comments
VIL Community Guests

1. Chandra Ward — Turner Community Connection

VIII.  General Manager / Staff Reports

1. Customer Service Quarterly Update

i1. April 2022 Financials

1. Approval of Preliminary Financials already presented
1v. Miscellaneous Comments
IX. Board Comments

X. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 5-18-22
Agenda Item #1V



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Thomas
Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Wendy Green, Senior Counsel;
Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Steve Green, Executive Director
Water Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Jerry Sullivan,
Chief Information Officer; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Randy Otting,
Director Accounting; Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning; Darren McNew,
Director Electric Transmission & Substation; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.
Ms. Gonzales called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.

Roll call was taken, all Board Members were present, Mr. Haley, was present via
phone and arrived in person at 5:07 P.M.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Mulvany
Henry, and unanimously carried.

Ttem #4 — Board Update/GM Update

Mr. Bryant gave an update on the Policy Committee meeting. They would like to be a
Work Session agenda item on June 22" to discuss proposed changes to the Cold Weather
Policy.

Mr. Haley reported on the Economic Development and Finance Standing Committee
meeting he attended. There was discussion regarding adjusting the PILOT rate differently for
residential and industrial/commercial customers.

Ms. Gonzales commented on the Governance role of the Board and the meaningful-
ness of their role in regards to strategies and direction of the utility. She felt like an outside
consultant would be helpful in zeroing in on the Board’s focus and help the Board navigate

Page 1 of 2



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

the Governance part of the Strategic Plan. She asked Mr. Johnson and Mr. Dennis
Dumovich, Director of Human Resources to look into that.

Mr. Johnson reported on the Government Efficiency and Economic Development
taskforce. All of the information from the preliminary Economic Development meetings was
being compiled and they would be including more members of the community in future
meetings.

He also spoke about the Supreme Court ruling regarding redistricting. The Unified
Government would be looking at the district maps to see what adjustment might need to be

made.

Item #5 — Purchase Power Agreements

Mr. Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning, updated the Board about
BPU’s Renewable Energy Supply which included, Federal Hydro, Wind, Landfill Gas,
Hydroelectric and Solar. He also gave an update about Purchase Power activity. (See
attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Ferris answered questions from the Board.

Item #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:58 P.M. by Mr. Bryant,
seconded by Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2




































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 5-18-22
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Thomas
Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Wendy Green, Senior Counsel; Lori
Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta Hinson, Executive
Director Customer Service; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Steve Green, Executive
Director Water Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Maurice
Moss, Executive Director Corporate Compliance; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications
Officer; Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning; Darren McNew, Director Electric
Transmission & Substation; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Ms. Gonzales called the Board meeting to order at 6:01 P.M. She welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. She stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. During the public comment section,
members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
Staff would assist those attending in person. During the public comment section of the agenda,
community members would be asked to provide their name and address and had five minutes to
speak. As always, the public could also email or call the BPU with any concerns. The agenda
and presentations could be found on the BPU website or if they were using Zoom they would
appear on their screen. Ms. Gonzales introduced herself and the other Board Members along
with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present.

Ttem #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan,
and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #4— Approval of Work Session Minutes of Mav 4. 2022

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Work Session of May 4, 2022, by
Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr. Bryant, and unanimously carried.

Item #5— Approval of Regular Session Minutes of May 4, 2022

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of May 4, 2022, by
Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

Item #6 — Public Comments

Mr. William Johnson, General Manager, asked Mr. Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager,
if there were any visitors wishing to speak.

Mr. Kamp said that no one had their hand raised via teleconference.

Item #7 — General Manager / Staff Reports

1. Presentation and Resolutions for 2021 ERC Recovery and Annual Audit: Lori Austin,
Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer, presented the final results and
highlights for the 2021 Audit of the Financial Statements and Schedules. (See attached
PowerPoint.) Ms. Austin then introduced Mr. Jacob Holman and Mr. Jim Vandyke of
BKD, LLC to review the year-end audit and process.

Ms. Austin and Mr. Holman, responded to questions and comments from the Board.

A motion was made to approve Resolution 5272, the Under Recovery of the Energy
Rate Component (ERC) for the 3™ and 4% quarter of 2021 in the amount of $2.3
million which would be recognized over the first and second quarters of 2022, by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

A motion was made to approve Resolution 5273, authorizing the Adoption of the 2021

Audited Financial Statements and Schedules, by Mr. Milan, seconded by Mr.
Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

ii.  Website Development: Mr. David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer, gave a
PowerPoint presentation reviewing the ongoing improvements and upcoming projects
being made to the BPU website. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Mehlhaff answered questions and comments from the Board.

During the discussion it was confirmed that the Board member emails would be added
to their profiles on the website.

.  Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson spoke about train delivery issues regarding coal
supplies to Nearman Power. Mr. Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production,
and Mr. Johnson were working on this rail operations matter.

Mr. Johnson also said he’d recently had the pleasure of speaking at the Donnelly College

graduation ceremony.

Item #8 — Board Comments

Mr. Haley said he would like to see our public service be noted on the website. He
also expressed his appreciation for the evening’s presentations. He also suggested perhaps
doing a resolution to show where the Board stood with the Unified Government (UG)
charges. He would provide a more detailed outline of Eco Devo standing committee on the
PILOT. He also congratulated Mr. Maurice Moss, Executive Director Corporate Compliance,
on being named as Ingram magazine’s 40 Under 40.

Mr. Groneman had no comments.

Mr. Milan thanked staff for their presentations and the update on the coal situation.

Mr. Bryant thanked all for the presentations this evening. He also thanked the staff
who had participated in the Policy Committee meeting. He commented on Mr. Ferris’s
presentation and stated that keeping Nearman Power as an operational asset for the community

was the right decision.

Ms. Mulvany Henry had no comments.

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Ms. Gonzales thanked Mr. Ferris and Mr. Quach for the information given this
evening.

Item #9 — Executive Session

Ms. Wendy Green, Senior Counsel, proposed a motion for adoption as follows:

“I move that after taking a ten minute break the Board go into Executive Session for 30
minutes in the first floor Board room to discuss confidential matters related to review of the
general manager, a personnel matter of nonelected personnel as justified under the personnel
matters of a nonelected employee exception in the Kansas Open Meetings Act; and that the and
that General Manager William Johnson, and Senior Counsel Wendy Green, be present to
participate in the discussion, all others to be dismissed from the room and electronic and
telephonic transmissions to cease, and that we and reconvene in open session returning to both
electronic and telephonic broadcasting at 8:10 P.M. in the Board Room to either take action in
an open session or to adjourn.

This motion was made by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry and unanimously
carried. The Board moved into a closed Executive Session with Mr. Johnson and Ms. Green in
attendance.

At 8:10 P.M. the meeting was opened and broadcasting resumed.

Ttem #9 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn at 8:10 P.M. by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan, and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4


















RESOLUTION NUMBER B272.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE UNDER RECOVERY OF THE
ENERGY RATE COMPONENT (ERC) FOR THE 3RP AND 474
QUARTER OF 2021 IN THE AMOUNT OF $2.3 MILLION WHICH
WILL BE RECOGNIZED OVER THE FIRST AND SECOND
QUARTERS OF 2022.

WHEREAS, the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City. Kansas ("KCBPU”) adopted the
Energy Rate Component Rate Rider in a rate hearing which provides for a reconciliation
adjustment for over and under recoveries: and

WHEREAS, the KCBPU had an under recovery in the 3" and 4" quarters of 2021 in the
amount of $2.3 million. and wishes to amortize it over the 1% and 2 quarter of 2022,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU:

The under recovery of the Energy Rate Component for the 3% and 4™ quarter of 2021
shall be recognized in the amount of $2.3 million and shall be amortized over the 1 and 2™
quarter of 2022,

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 18" DAY OF MAY, 2022.

WA ) Vo
Mar}Qqua‘les, B({iljd President

Attest:

%%9 / bt

“Thomas Grofierfian, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

oo

I@PU Legal Counsel




RESOLUTION NO: 5273

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2021 AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES AN

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS:

Whereas. the 2021 Audited Financial Statements and Schedules has been presented to the Board
of the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities an administrative agency of the Unified Government

of Wyandotte County/Kansas City. Kansas: and

Whereas. the Board has reviewed said Statements and Schedules as audited by BKD. LLP: and
Whereas, the Board wishes to adopt the 2021 Audited Financial Statements and Schedules.

Therefore, the Board hereby adopts the 2021 Audited Financial Statements and Schedules.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 18" DAY OF MAY, 2022,

b o

Mary ,oﬁza‘lcs, I@rd President

Attest:

%Mﬁ? / Pl bvptvir—

homas Gpeneman, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

LA

c/
























































































General Manager /
Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VIII



Wanthiy Fihaneial Statements

[

Unaudited
Forr the Retiod] Ending
Apilll 30, 2022
Biepaned By Accounting




KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)

April 2022
Financial Statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Combining Unaudited Balance Sheet
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets
All Operating Units
Electric Operating Unit
Water Operating Unit
Graphical Three Year Summary
Budget Comparison — January 1 thru April 30, 2022
Construction Summary — January 1 thru April 30, 2022
Financial Metrics

Debt Service Coverage

Statement of Cash and Investments

~J]

11

20

31

32

35






























o))



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



0¢



1¢



44



€¢



124



q¢



9¢



Le



8¢



6¢



0€



31



[43

Certificate of Calculation
Of Net Revenues for the
Board of Public Utilities
For The Month Ended
April 2022

According to the requirements of the Supplemental Indentures, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, dated as of June
1, 2014, effective as of December 8, 2016 and any Supplemental Indentures as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, the
Board of Public Utilities is required to calculate the Net Revenues of the Utility System for the twelve month period ending with such calendar
quarter.

“Net Revenues” means the Revenues of the Utility System, less Operation and Maintenance Expenses.

Electric Water Combined
12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
April 30. 2022 April 30,2022 April 30,2022

Revenues $ 286,045,216 51,259,293 337,304,509
Operating and Maintenance Expenses (190,935,207) (28,087,120) (219,022,327)
Net Revenues $ 95,110,009 23,172,173 118,282,182
Maximum Annual Debt Service - Total Debt $ 44,880,036 11,909,679 52,206,664
Coverage - Electric/2029 Water/2022 Combined/2024 2.12 1.95 2.27
Maximum Annual Debt Service - Parity $ 44,668,378 8,402,282 47,988,426
Coverage - Electric/2030 Water/2022 Combined/2025 2.13 2.76 2.46

Lori C. Austin
CFO/CAO



€e

Total Utility Revenues

Residential Sales
Commercial Sales

Industrial Sales

Schools

Other Sales (1)

Wholesale Sales

Payment In Lieu Of Taxes
Interest Income and Other (2)
Bond Cost of Issuance
Deferred Revenue - Fuel/PP*

Less: Construction Fund Earnings

Total Revenues

Exhibit 1
REVENUES

Electric Water Combined
12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
April 30, 2022 April 30, 2022 April 30, 2022

$ 76,162,637 24,507,510 100,670,147
100,199,617 11,103,165 111,302,782
42,707,887 5,887,538 48,595,425

9,445,067 594,972 10,040,039

328,712 617,793 946,505

19,126,772 1,321,701 20,448,473
27,606,272 5,392,120 32,998,392

6,584,812 1,834,494 8,419,306

3,887,574 - 3,887,574
(4,134) - (4,134)

$ 286,045,216 51,259,293 337,304,509

*Revenue deferred for Energy Rate Component (ERC) reconciliation adjustment (FAS 71)

“Revenues” mean all income and revenue derived by the BPU from the management, operation and control of the Utility System or any Project or other part

thereof, whether resulting from extensions, enlargements, repairs or betterments to the Utility System or otherwise, and includes all revenues received by the

BPU from the Utility System, including rates and charges imposed by the BPU with respect to the Utility System and from the sale and use of services and

products of such Utility System, and includes all income derived from the investment of monies in any of the Funds established herein (the Indenture of Trust

dated June, 2014) except those monies in the Construction Fund derived from Bond proceeds, but such term shall not include proceeds paid with respect to any

loss incurred by the Utility System covered by an appropriate insurance policy and shall not include extraordinary revenues.

Notes: (1) Other sales includes: highway lighting, public authorities, fire protection and other non-operating income

(2) Interest income and other includes: forfeited discounts, connect/disconnect fees, tower/pole attachment rental, ash disposal, interest on

investments and other miscellaneous non-operating revenues.



ve

Exhibit 2

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Electric Water Combined
12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
April 30. 2022 April 30. 2022 April 30. 2022
Operating Expenses* b 249,276,016 41,808,531 291,084,547
Less: Depreciation And Amortization (30,734,537) (8,329,291) (39,063,828)
Less: Payment In Lieu of Taxes (27,606,272) (5,392,120) (32,998.,392)
Operating & Maintenance Expenses $ 190,935,207 28,087,120 219,022,327

*Excludes interest expense on outstanding Revenue Bonds.

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses™ means the funds necessary to maintain and operate the Utility System, inctuding, but not limited to, amounts of money reasonably required to be set aside for
such items, the payment of which is not then immediately required, including all money necessary for the payment of the costs of ordinary repairs, renewals and replacements, salaries and wages,
employees’ health, hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, insurance premiums, legal, enginecring, accounting and financial advisory fees and expenses and the cost of additional consulting
and technical services, taxes (but not including payments in lieu thereof), other governmental charges, fuel costs, the cost of purchased power and transmission service, any current expenses or
obligations required to be paid by the BPU by ordinance of the City or by Law, to the extent properly allocable to the Utility System under generally accepted accounting principles, the fees and
expenses of any fiduciary, including those of the Trustee hereunder, and any other costs which are considered to be Operating and Maintenance Expenses in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Operation and Maintenance Expenses do not include payments in lieu of taxes, depreciation or obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, extraordinary or materially unusual or
infrequently occurring expense items, amortization of intangibles, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal or amortization of bonded or other indebtedness of the City or the BPU,
costs, or charges made therefor for capital additions, replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to, or retirements from, the sale, abandonment, reclassification, revaluation or other

disposition of any properties of the Utility System, and such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized by the BPU.



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Ge

April 30, 2022 April 30, 2022 April 30, 2022
Electric Water Combined
Beginning Cash and investments As of 01/01/22 S 58,023,736 23,511,012 81,534,748
Cash Receipts Year to Date 143,285,007 17,306,865 160,591,873
Cash Payments Year to Date (149,794,439} {15,080,357) (164,874,797)
Cash and Investments as of 4/30/22 S 51,514,304 25,737,520 77,251,824
Restrictions of Cash and Investments
Customer Deposit S 6,025,323 1,323,159 7,348,482
Self Insurance Reserve - Public Liability 800,000 200,000 1,000,000
Self Insurance Reserve -Workers' Comp 880,000 220,000 1,100,000
Debt Service Fund 19,524,889 5,669,346 25,194,235
Debt Reduction Fund - 6,290,000 6,290,000
Rate Stabilization Fund 9,156,273 - 9,156,273
Improvement and Emergency Fund 1,350,000 150,000 1,500,000
Construction Fund 2016C 709,507 - 709,507
Construction Fund 2020A 797,525 - 797,525
Ongoing Construction Reserve for 2022 4,653,000 682,485 5,335,485
System Development - 11,059,738 11,059,738
Remaining Operating Reserve Requirement 22,973,313 1,000,000 23,973,313
Economic Development Fund 350,000 150,000 500,000
Total Restrictions S 67,219,830 26,744,728 93,964,558
Unrestricted Cash and Investments S (15,705,526) (1,007,208) (16,712,734)

* The unrestricted cash balance represents the amount needed to fully fund the reserve funds as established in the BPU Financial Guideline Policy 02-100-007






